

U.S. Department of Justice
Executive Office for United States Attorneys

United States Attorneys' Bulletin

Published by:

Executive Office for United States Attorneys, Washington, D.C. For the use of all U.S. Department of Justice Attorneys

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
CLEARINGHOUSE	407
COMMENDATIONS	409
POINTS TO REMEMBER Home Venue Option In Criminal Tax Prosecutions	411
CASENOTES CIVIL DIVISION Bivens Suits: Supreme Court Holds That Federal Employees For Whom Civil Service Remedies Are Available Cannot Maintain A Separate Action Directly Under The Constitution For Damages Arising Out of Personnel Disputes Bush v. Lucas	413
Governmental Right of Recoupment: Supreme Court Holds That Secretary Of Education Has Statutory Authority To Require State Reci- pients To Repay Grant Funds Misspent Under Title 1. Bell v. New Jersey and Pennsylvania	414
Bivens Suits: Supreme Court Overturns Ninth Circuit Decision Allowing Servicemen To Sue Their Superior Officers For Damages Under The Constitution Chappell v. Wallace	415
National Security Act: D.C. Circuit Holds That To Constitute A Protected "Intelligence Source" Under The National Security Act, A Pledge Of Confidentiality Is Not Necessary Or Controlling Sims v. CIA	416

	Dage
Federal Advisory Committee Act: D.C. Circuit Rejects Claim That The Membership And Acti- vities Of A Presidential Advisory Committee Violate The Federal Advisory Committee Act National Anti-Hunger Coalition v. Executive Committee of the President's Private Sector Survey on Cost Control	Page
Freedom of Information Act: D.C. Circuit Affirms District Court Ruling That Treasury Department Data On Arab Investments In The United States Fall Within Exemption 1 Of FOIA American Jewish Congress v. Department of Treasury	418
Standing Under APA: D.C. Circuit Holds That Public Interest Law Firm Lacks Standing To Challenge Government's Decision To Repurchase Polish Debt Guarantees As Alleged Violation Of Notice And Comment Provision Of Administrative Procedure Act Capital Legal Foundation v. Commodity Credit Corp.	419
Social Security Benefits: Second Circuit Holds That Exhaustion Is Required Before Social Security Claimants May Sue In Federal Court Claiming That Secretary Must Show Medical Improvement Before Terminating Disa- bility Benefits Smith v. Schweiker	420
Bivens Suits: Fourth Circuit Holds That Bivens Claims Brought By A Former Defense Contractor Are Barred By The Statute Of Limitations Blanck v. McKeen	421
Bivens Suits: Seventh Circuit En Banc Decides Bivens Suit By FBI Agent In Favor Of His FBI Supervisor Charles E. Egger v. Harlan C. Phillips	422

Of Secret Reimburse Indigents	Eleventh Circuit Upholds Refusal ary Of HHS To Provide Medicare ment For Hill-Burton Free Care To And For Medicare Patients' Tele-	<u>Page</u>
phone Cos Memorial H	ospital v. <u>Heckler</u>	423
APPENDIX:	FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE This page should be placed on permanent file, by Rule, in each United States Attorney's Office Library	425
	LIST OF U.S. ATTORNEYS	427

JULY 8, 1983

VOL. 31

NO. 13

JULY 8, 1983

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS William P. Tyson, Director

CLEARINGHOUSE

United States v. Moller-Butcher, et al., Crim. No. 82-00066 (D. Mass. March 25, 1983).

EXPORT ADMINISTRATION ACT, 50 U.S.C.

APP. §2410 -- ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF

CRIMINAL VIOLATIONS OF THE ACT:

GOVERNMENT IS NOT REQUIRED TO PROVE

THAT AN ITEM WOULD, IF EXPORTED, MAKE

A SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTION TO THE

MILITARY POTENTIAL OF A HOSTILE COUNTRY.

The Export Administration Act, 50 U.S.C. App. §2410, makes it a criminal offense to unlawfully export items or technologies which are listed on the Commodities Control List ("CCL"). The Secretary of Commerce lists on the CCL those items which could, if exported, make a significant contribution to the military potential of hostile countries.

On February 18, 1982, defendants were charged in a 30count indictment with exporting electronic equipment listed on the CCL to Bulgaria, Poland, Romania, and other European countries without the required licenses, and with false statement violations. Defendants filed a motion to dismiss the indictment because it failed to allege that the export of the equipment would significantly contribute to the military potential of other countries, which the court denied. held that the Government is not required to allege or prove that an item on the CCL would, if exported, make a significant contribution to the military potential of other countries. court reasoned that: (1) Congress expressly provided that the implementation of the Export Administration Act is not subject to judicial review, (2) Congress may delegate broad powers concerning the conduct of foreign relations to the Executive Branch, and (3) whether an item would, if exported, significantly contribute to the military potential of other countries is a nonjusticiable policy question.

- 2 -

A copy of the court's decision is attached as an appendix to this issue of the Bulletin.

Attorneys:

Joan Stanley (D. Mass.) FTS: 223-0284

Joseph J. Tafe (Criminal Division) FTS: 724-7103

(Criminal Division)

COMMENDATIONS

Assistant United States Attorneys BENJAMIN L. BAILEY and LARRY R. ELLIS, Southern District of West Virginia, have been commended by Mr. J. Brian Hyland, Deputy Inspector General, U.S. Department of Labor, for the successful prosecution of <u>United States</u> v. <u>Fred Carter</u>, which resulted in the first jury conviction in history under 33 U.S.C. § 928(e) as applied to the Federal black lung law.

Assistant United States Attorneys JOHN COMPTON, ROBERT TREVEY, and CHARLES DAUSE, Eastern District of Kentucky, have been commended by Mr. James B. Johnson, Special Agent in Charge, United States Secret Service, Department of the Treasury, Louisville, Kentucky, for their impressive work in the preparation and presentation of the Gross case, which involved the seizure of a complete counterfeiting operation in Lexington, Kentucky, and resulted in the conviction of three defendants.

Assistant United States Attorney CHARLES R. NIVEN, Middle District of Alabama, has been commended by Mr. Maurice J. Stack, Jr., Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Mobile, Alabama, for the substantial part he played in the intensive investigations involving a complex fraud by wire violation, which resulted in an indictment, and interstate transportation of a stolen motor vehicle, which resulted in an indictment and a guilty plea.

Assistant United States Attorney BRIAN A. SUN, Central District of California, has been commended by Mr. Ted W. Hunter, Special Agent in Charge, Drug Enforcement Administration, Department of Justice, Los Angeles, California, for his thorough research of the law in the area of extended border searches and domestic airport contacts which led to the successful prosecution of United States v. Jose Orlando Caicedo-Guarnizo, a "balloon swallower" case which involved surveillance of the defendant in two cities prior to his arrival and arrest in Los Angeles.

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS William P. Tyson, Director

POINTS TO REMEMBER

"Home Venue Option" In Criminal Tax Prosecutions

Section 3237(b) of Title 18, United States Code, commonly called the "home venue option," is a special venue provision for prosecutions of offenses involving use of the mails which are described in 26 U.S.C. 7201 and 7206(1) and (2). When the home option is properly invoked, a prosecution begun in a district other than where the defendant resides must be transferred to the district of the defendant's residence at the time of the offense, upon the filing of a motion within 20 days of The Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit recently arraignment. sustained the Department's position that Section 3237(b) has no application where venue is established in the district of prosecution on the basis of activities independent of any mailing. In re on Petition of the United States (Nardone), 83-1 U.S.T.C. para. 9358 (May 11, 1983).

The defendant, a resident of New York, had been indicted in the Southern District of West Virginia in connection with a tax shelter scheme and the district court transferred the prosecution to New York. The Fourth Circuit found that the transfer was improper because venue was in no way dependent on any mailing. The court relied heavily on the reasoning of the Second Circuit In re United States (Clemente), 608 F. 2d 76 (1979), cert. denied, 446 U.S. 908 (1980), which likewise adopted a narrow reading of the home venue option. At this writing, a motion for rehearing en banc is pending. The case was handled by Assistant United States Attorneys Benjamin J. Bailey and Mary S. Feinberg.

The Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit reached a contrary conclusion in <u>United States</u> v. <u>United States District Court (Solomon)</u>, 693 F. 2d 68 (1982). The issue is again before the Ninth Circuit in <u>United States</u> v. <u>Dahlstrom</u>, Dkt. Nos. 82-1137, 82-1138, 82-1141, 82-1142 and 82-1143, where two defendants are attempting to obtain reversal of their convictions on the ground that transfer was required by Section 3237(b). In contending that the conviction should be sustained, we argued that the <u>Solomon</u> decision was distinguishable on the facts and alternatively requested that the issue be heard en banc.

(Tax Division)

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Bush v. Lucas, U.S. No. 82-167 (June 13, 1983). D.J. # 145-6-2062.

BIVENS SUITS: SUPREME COURT HOLDS THAT FEDERAL EMPLOYEES FOR WHOM CIVIL SERVICE REMEDIES ARE AVAILABLE CANNOT MAINTAIN A SEPARATE ACTION DIRECTLY UNDER THE CONSTITUTION FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF PERSONNEL DISPUTES.

The Supreme Court has just unanimously affirmed the dismissal of this Bivens suit brought by a NASA engineer alleging he was demoted in retaliation for the exercise of his free speech rights. The plaintiff had pursued his civil service remedy and ultimately obtained full administrative reversal of the demotion, with reinstatement and back pay.

The Court ruled, 9-0, that in the area of Federal personnel policy, where Congress has historically labored step by step to create a "comprehensive" and "elaborate" remedial system for the redress of employee grievances, the courts will not step in to infer an additional judicial remedy for damages directly under the Constitution, even if the constitutional remedy might provide elements of relief that are not available under the statutory In these circumstances, the Court held, it is for Congress, not the courts, to determine whether the public interest is served by the creation of further remedies. concurring, Justices Marshall and Blackmun emphasized that the Court was not confronted with the question of whether a judgemade remedy should be provided for an alleged constitutional wrong against a Federal employee that might otherwise go unredressed, such as, presumably, those involving actions or persons which are not covered by civil service remedies or other statutory relief.)

Attorneys: Barbara L. Herwig (Civil Division) FTS (633-5425)

Wendy M. Keats (Civil Division) FTS (633-3355)

414

VOL. 31

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Bell v. New Jersey and Pennsylvania, U.S. No. 81-2125 (May 31, 1983). D.J. # 145-16-1901.

GOVERNMENTAL RIGHT OF RECOUPMENT: SUPREME
COURT HOLDS THAT SECRETARY OF EDUCATION HAS
STATUTORY AUTHORITY TO REQUIRE STATE RECIPIENTS TO REPAY GRANT FUNDS MISSPENT UNDER
TITLE I.

The Supreme Court has unanimously reversed the Third Circuit's decision denying the authority of the Federal Government to recoup grant funds misspent under the Title I education grant program prior to 1978. (Repayment authority was made explicit as a result of the Education Amendments of 1978). Specifically, the Court held that provisions of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 and the General Education Provisions Act requiring payments of Federal grants to take into account or make adjustments for any overpayments or underpayments in previous grants "plainly" gave the Government the right to recover misused Title I funds. The Court relied, too, on legislative history demonstrating Congress' clear expectation that the Secretary would require restitution of misspent money.

In addition, the Court rejected the State's argument that imposition of liability for misused funds violates the Tenth Amendment, finding that if the conditions for receiving the grant are valid the State has no sovereign right to retain the funds without complying with these conditions. Finally, the Court held that the Secretary may exercise his recoupment right administratively (subject to the State's right to seek judicial review) rather than by filing an original suit in Federal court, as the Third Circuit suggested.

Attorneys: William Kanter (Civil Division) FTS (633-1597)

Susan M. Chalker (Civil Division) FTS (633-5459)

415

VOL. 31

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Chappell v. Wallace, U.S. No. 82-167 (June 13, 1983). D.J. #145-6-2062.

BIVENS SUITS: SUPREME COURT OVERTURNS NINTH CIRCUIT DECISION ALLOWING SERVICEMEN TO SUE THEIR SUPERIOR OFFICERS FOR DAMAGES UNDER THE CONSTITUTION.

A group of black Navy enlisted men on the U.S.S. <u>Decatur</u> brought this suit for money damages against their commanding officers. The enlisted men claimed racial discrimination in promotions, work assignments, and punishments on the <u>Decatur</u>. The district court dismissed the suit, but the Ninth Circuit reversed the district court decision and remanded the case for further proceedings. The Ninth Circuit reasoned that <u>Bivens</u> authorized constitutional damage suits, and that military officers enjoyed no absolute immunity from such suits brought by their subordinates. We sought review in the Supreme Court, and in a strongly-worded opinion by the Chief Justice, the Supreme Court has just held that "special factors" peculiar to the military -- namely, its need to insist on discipline and reflexive obedience to orders -- preclude constitutional damage suits by subordinates against their superior officers.

Attorneys:

Robert E. Kopp (Civil Division) FTS (633-3311)

John F. Cordes (Civil Division) FTS (633-4214)

Argued by J. Paul McGrath, Assistant Attorney General

416

VOL. 31

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Sims v. CIA, F.2d Nos. 82-1945, 82-1961 (D.C. Cir. June 10, 1983). D.J. # 45-1-704

NATIONAL SECURITY ACT: D.C. CIRCUIT HOLDS
THAT TO CONSTITUTE A PROTECTED "INTELLIGENCE
SOURCE" UNDER THE NATIONAL SECURITY ACT, A
PLEDGE OF CONFIDENTIALITY IS NOT NECESSARY OR
CONTROLLING.

In Sims v. CIA, 642 F.2d 562 (D.C. Cir. 1980) (Sims I), the court of appeals vacated a district court order which had required public disclosure of the identities of scientific researchers whom the CIA claimed to be "intelligence sources" protected by the National Security Act and Exemption 3 of the FOIA. The Sims I panel remanded for further proceedings, stating that an "intelligence source" means a person or entity who provides intelligence data of a kind the Agency could not reasonably expect to obtain without a "guarantee of confidentiality." On remand the district court determined that all of the researchers supplied intelligence data, but that 47 must be disclosed because the CIA had not proved that it had given "guarantees of confidentiality" in order to obtain the data. The D.C. Circuit has again reversed and remanded, holding that a "guarantee of confidentiality" as used in Sims I does not require a pledge of confidentiality, but something less.

Attorney: Michael Kimmel (Civil Division) FTS (633-5714)

National Anti-Hunger Coalition v. Executive Committee of the President's Private Sector Survey on Cost Control, F.2d
No. 83-1248 (D.C. Cir. June 14, 1983). D.J. # 145-8-1560.

FEDERAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE ACT: D.C. CIRCUIT REJECTS CLAIM THAT THE MEMBERSHIP AND ACTIVITIES OF A PRESIDENTIAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE VIOLATE THE FEDERAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE ACT.

About a year ago, the President established an advisory committee, consisting almost exclusively of business executives,

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

to offer recommendations on management efficiency and cost control within the Federal Government. A private foundation was created to fund the advisory committee's activities and to provide staffing for the committee. The foundation organized 36 task forces to study various aspects of Federal costs, and to prepare reports for review by the foundation's Management Office and, ultimately, for submission to the advisory committee. Several months ago, plaintiffs -- organizations and individuals interested in Government food programs -- filed this suit, claiming that the advisory committee's membership violated the "fairly balanced" provision of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), and that the foundation's task forces should be subject to the FACA's procedural and document-production requirements. The district court entered judgment for the Government and dismissed plaintiffs' suit. On an expedited appeal, the D.C. Circuit in an opinion by Judge Edwards has just affirmed. D.C. Circuit rejected our submission that the "fairly balanced" provision does not bind the President, and also questioned (without ruling on) our submission that plaintiffs lacked standing to enforce the provision. On the merits, however, the court of appeals agreed with us that, in view of the committee's stated purpose to study management and cost control, the limitation of its membership to business executives was not The court of appeals also agreed with our characterization of the task forces as "staff" not subject to the The court did leave open the possibility, however, that plaintiffs might reargue these issues on a Rule 60(b) motion based on evidence that has developed after the close of the district court record -- i.e., the contents of the actual task force reports.

Attorneys:

Richard K. Willard, Deputy Assistant Attorney General (Civil Division) FTS (633-3333)

John F. Cordes (Civil Division) FTS (633-4214)

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

American Jewish Congress v. Department of Treasury, F.2d
No. 82-2424 (D.C. Cir. June 1, 1983). D.J. # 145-3-2380.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT: D.C. CIRCUIT
AFFIRMS DISTRICT COURT RULING THAT TREASURY
DEPARTMENT DATA ON ARAB INVESTMENTS IN THE
UNITED STATES FALL WITHIN EXEMPTION 1 OF
FOIA.

Since 1974 the United States Government has promised certain Middle-East oil exporting countries that the extent of their financial holdings in the United States would be kept confidential. In this case the American Jewish Congress filed a FOIA request for information relating to the financial holdings of Saudi Arabia, Kuwait, and the United Arab Emirates in United States banks and in United States Treasury Bills. The Treasury Department denied the request on national security grounds, explaining that to disclose the information in breach of the assurances previously made, could cause harm to our foreign relations with these countries. The district court upheld our Exemption 1 claim. On appeal the AJC's primary argument was that the executive's classification decision notwithstanding, Congress in the International Investment Survey Act mandated disclosure of the information sought. We argued that such an attempt by Congress to override the executive's classification authority would raise sedious constitutional questions that should be avoided and that the statute simply did not support plaintiff's reading. In an unpublished order, the D.C. Circuit has affirmed the district court's Exemption 1 ruling.

Attorneys: Leonard Schaitman (Civil Division) FTS (633-3441)

Nicholas Zeppos (Civil Division) FTS (633-5431)

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Capital Legal Foundation v. Commodity Credit Corp., F.2d
No. 82-1350 (D.C. Cir. June 17, 1983). D.J. # 120-16-33.

STANDING UNDER APA: D.C. CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT
PUBLIC INTEREST LAW FIRM LACKS STANDING TO
CHALLENGE GOVERNMENT'S DECISION TO REPURCHASE
POLISH DEBT GUARANTEES AS ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
NOTICE AND COMMENT PROVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE
PROCEDURE ACT.

In a very favorable opinion by Judge Ginsburg, the D.C. Circuit held that Capital Legal, a public interest law firm, lacks standing to challenge the Government's decision to repurchase its Polish debt guarantees held by twelve American banks or exporters, as a means of putting pressure on Poland and the Soviet Union after the declaration of martial law in Poland.

Capital Legal's sole claim of injury was that it was denied an opportunity to comment on the Government's repurchase offer, which was extended directly to those holding the guarantees, and that Capital had a particular interest in economic regulation. The panel held that Capital failed to allege injury in fact and that it was not within the "zone of interests" of the substantive statutes involved. Capital's "vibrant interest in commenting prior to agency action. . " was held insufficient to confer standing, where it conceded that "it is not governed, adversely affected, or aggrieved by the substance of the agency decision it seeks to reopen." Dismissal of the complaint was affirmed.

Attornevs:

Richard Willard, Deputy Assistant Attorney General (Civil Division) FTS (633-3333)

Anthony J. Steinmeyer (Civil Division) FTS (633-3388)

Al J. Daniel, Jr. (Civil Division) FTS (633-3045)

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Smith v. Schweiker, F.2d No. 82-6272 (2d Cir. June 1, 1983). D.J. # 137-78-74.

SOCIAL SECURITY BENEFITS: SECOND CIRCUIT
HOLDS THAT EXHAUSTION IS REQUIRED BEFORE
SOCIAL SECURITY CLAIMANTS MAY SUE IN FEDERAL
COURT CLAIMING THAT SECRETARY MUST SHOW
MEDICAL IMPROVEMENT BEFORE TERMINATING
DISABILITY BENEFITS.

Plaintiffs, without exhausting their administrative remedies, brought this broad-based action challenging the Secretary's procedures and standards for terminating disability benefits. Most importantly, plaintiffs claimed that before terminating benefits, the Secretary must show medical improve-The district court rejected our contention that exhaustion was required and proceeded to rule in the Secretary's favor on the merits. In the Second Circuit we defended the district court's merits ruling but also asked that the judgment be affirmed on the basis that there was a failure to exhaust administrative remedies. The Second Circuit has just ruled that exhaustion was required. The court reaffirmed the two-pronged test of Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 U.S. 319 (1976), that to waive exhaustion a claimant must show that the claim is collateral to a claim for benefits and that judicial intervention is necessary to prevent irreparable injury. Applying this test the court concluded that a claim that improvement was required before termination was "hardly collateral to a claim for benefits." court also noted that the claimant suffers no irreparable injury by exhausting because under the 1983 amendments to the Social Security Act, benefits are paid through the ALJ level. Finally, the court held that relief for these plaintiffs -- a determination of disability and a grant of benefits -- was available through the administrative process.

Attorneys: William Kanter (Civil Division) FTS (633-1597)

Nicholas Zeppos (Civil Division) FTS (633-5413)

JULY 8, 1983

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Blanck v. McKeen, et al., F.2d No. 82-1730 (4th Cir. May 23, 1983). D.J. # 78-79-284.

BIVENS SUITS: FOURTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT BIVENS CLAIMS BROUGHT BY A FORMER DEFENSE CONTRACTOR ARE BARRED BY THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS.

Albert Blanck, a former Government contractor, brought suit against an array of Department of Defense officials in their individual capacities for alleged violations of Blanck's constitutional rights. Blanck sought damages for personal injury and injury to property, claiming that the officials violated the First and Fifth Amendments by conspiring to improperly terminate his contracts and thereby drive his corporation, Futeronics, Inc., into bankruptcy. The district court (E.D. Va.) dismissed the action on the grounds that the complaint alleged at most common law tort and contract claims, not constitutional violations; and that in any event, the claims were barred by the statute of limitations. Applying Virginia's two-year statute of limitations for personal injury, and five-year statute for injury to property, the Fourth Circuit held that Blanck's claims were time-barred. Citing Fitzgerald v. Seamans, 553 F.2d 220 (D.C. Cir. 1977), the court held that plaintiff knew, or should have known, of his cause of action at least by 1976, when he brought breach of contract claims before the Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals and the Court of Claims. The court did not reach the other issues on appeal, including whether the complaint failed to state a constitutional cause of action, whether defendants were immune from liability under Harlow v. Fitzgerald, 102 S. Ct. 2727 (1982), and whether the procedural system for resolving Government contract disputes presented "special factors" counseling hesitation in imposing a Bivens action.

Attorneys: Barbara Herwig (Civil Division) FTS (633-5425)

Jenny Sternbach (Civil Division) FTS (633-4027)

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

<u>Charles E. Egger v. Harlan C. Phillips.</u> F.2d No. 80-2503 (7th Cir. June 2, 1983). D.J. # 157-26A-394.

BIVENS SUITS: SEVENTH CIRCUIT EN BANC DECIDES
BIVENS SUIT BY FBI AGENT IN FAVOR OF HIS FBI
SUPERVISOR.

In this <u>Bivens</u> case an FBI agent sought damages from his supervisor for allegedly bringing about his transfer from the Indianapolis field office in retaliation for his exercise of his First Amendment rights to criticize the conduct of his fellow agents. The district court granted summary judgment in favor of the supervisor, holding that the transfer was warranted because the agent's conduct had seriously disrupted the operations of the Indianapolis field office. A divided three-judge panel reversed and remanded for a jury trial on the ground that the question of the supervisor's motivation in recommending the transfer could not be resolved on motion for summary judgment.

We petitioned for rehearing en banc, and the case was reargued last October. In a 72-page opinion, an eight-judge en banc court has unanimously affirmed the judgment of the district court, holding that the supervisor was entitled to good faith immunity in the light of Harlow v. Fitzgerald, 50 L.W. 4815, and to summary judgment in his favor upon the balancing of the conflicting claims of First Amendment protection and the need for orderly public administration prescribed in Pickering v. Board of Education, 391 U.S. 563 (1968), recently reaffirmed in Connick v. Myers, 51 L.W. 4436. Four judges rejected our claim that "special factors counselled hesitation" in implying a Bivens action in favor of an FBI agent against his supervisor for personnel actions; the remaining four judges considered it unnecessary to resolve the issue.

Attorneys:

William Kanter (Civil Division) FTS (633-1597)

Eloise Davies (Civil Division, on rehearing). FTS (633-3425)

JULY 8, 1983

NO. 13

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Memorial Hospital v. Heckler, F.2d No. 81-6230 (11th Cir. June 6, 1983). D.J. # 137-17M-406.

MEDICARE: ELEVENTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS REFUSAL OF SECRETARY OF HHS TO PROVIDE MEDICARE REIMBURSEMENT FOR HILL-BURTON FREE CARE TO INDIGENTS AND FOR MEDICARE PATIENTS' TELEPHONE COSTS.

The Eleventh Circuit in this case joined the First, Fourth, Sixth, Seventh, and Eighth Circuits in rejecting hospitals' claims to medicare reimbursement for Hill-Burton free care. prospects for success on that issue were problematical in the Eleventh Circuit, because a 1980 decision of the former Fifth Circuit allowed reimbursement for the free care (Presbyterian Hospital of Dallas v. Harris), and seemingly bound the Eleventh Citing the Fifth Circuit case, the district court here allowed the reimbursement to the 62 hospitals that filed this suit. The court of appeals, however, reversed the district court judgment, and pointed to a recent statutory amendment clarifying that Hill-Burton costs are not reimbursable. The court of appeals held that the retroactive application of this clarifying legislation is, as we had submitted, constitutional. The court of appeals also upheld the Secretary's regulation refusing reimbursement for patient telephone costs, despite the hospitals' voluminous evidence purporting to show the telephones' therapeutic value. The court rejected our argument that it lacked jurisdiction to review the patient telephone regulation, but, on the merits, the court deferred to the Secretary's interpretation of the Medicare Act and found the regulation valid under the Act.

Attorneys: Anthony J. Steinmeyer (Civil Division) FTS (633-3388)

John F. Cordes (Civil Division) FTS (633-4214)

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure

Rule 43. Presence Required.

During the voir dire before defendant's trial the court questioned prospective jurors in open court. Those who responded affirmatively to certain questions were further questioned at the bench, in the physical presence, but out of the direct observation and hearing, of defendant. Although defendant's counsel participated in this bench examination, her request to permit defendant's participation was denied. Defendant appealed her subsequent conviction, alleging a violation of her Rule 43 right to be present at all stages of her trial.

The court of appeals ruled that Rule 43 was intended to be a restatement of the common law right to presence, as well as an embodiment of Sixth and Fourteenth Amendment guarantees, and that because participation by the defendant is necessary to protect these interests, Rule 43 requires her presence at most phases of a criminal proceeding, including any part of the voir dire conducted at the bench. It went on hold, however, that any error in denying defendant access to the bench examination was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt, as there was no evidence that it contributed to defendant's conviction or adversely affected any of her substantive rights.

(Judgment affirmed.)

<u>United States v. Washington</u>, 705 F.2d 489, (D.C. Cir. April 15, 1983).

U.S. ATTORNEYS' LIST EFFECTIVE June 3, 1983

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

DISTRICT	U.S. ATTORNEY
Alabama, N	Prank W. Donaldson
Alabama, M	John C. Bell
Alabama, S	J. B. Sessions, III
Alaska	Michael R. Spaan
Arizona	A. Melvin McDonald
Arkansas, E	George W. Proctor
Arkansas, W	W. Asa Hutchinson
California, N	Joseph P. Russoniello
California, E	Donald B. Ayer
California, C	Stephen S. Trott
California, S	Peter K. Nunez
Colorado	Robert N. Miller
Connecticut	Alan H. Nevas
Delaware	Joseph J. Farnan, Jr.
District of Columbia	Stanley S. Harris
Florida, N	W. Thomas Dillard
Florida, M	Robert W. Merkle, Jr.
Florida, S	Stanley Marcus
Ceorgia, N	Larry D. Thompson
Georgia, M	Joe D. Whitley
Georgia, S	Rinton R. Fierce
Guam	David T. Wood
Hawaii	Daniel A. Bent
Idaho	Guy G. Hurlbutt
Illinois, N	Dan K. Webb
Illinois, S	Prederick J. Hess
Illinois, C	Gerald D. Pines
Indiana, N	R. Lawrence Steele, Jr.
Indiana, S	Sarah Evans Barker
Iowa, N	Evan L. Hultman
Iowa, S	Richard C. Turner
Kansas	Jim J. Marquez
Rentucky, E	Louis G. DeFalaise
Rentucky, W	Ronald E. Meredith
Louisiana, E	John Volz
Louisiana, M	Stanford O. Bardwell, Jr.
Louisiana, W	Joseph S. Cage, Jr.
Maine	Richard S. Cohen
Maryland	J. Frederick Motz
Massachusetts	William F. Weld
Michigan, E	Leonard R. Gilman
Michigan, W	John A. Smietanka
Minnesota	James M. Rosenbaum
Mississippi, N	Glen H. Davidson
Mississippi, S	George L. Phillips
Missouri, E	Thomas E. Dittmeier
Missouri, W	Robert G. Ulrich
•	

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

DISTRICT	U.S. ATTORNEY
Montana	Byron H. Dunbar
Nebraska	Ronald D. Lahners
Nevada	Lamond R. Mills
New Hampshire	W. Stephen Thayer, III
New Jersey	W. Bunt Dumont
New Mexico	William L. Lutz
New York, N	Prederick J. Scullin, Jr.
New York, S	Rudolph W. Giuliani
New York, E	Raymond J. Dearie
New York, W	Salvatore R. Martoche
North Carolina, E	Samuel T. Currin
North Carolina, M	Kenneth W. McAllister
North Carolina, W	Charles R. Brewer
North Dakota	Rodney S. Webb
Ohio, N	J. William Petro
Ohio, S	Christopher K. Barnes
Oklahoma, N	Prancis A. Keating, II
Oklahoma, E	Gary L. Richardson
Oklahoma, W	William S. Price
Oregon	Charles H. Turner
Pennsylvania, E	Edward S. G. Dennis, Jr.
Pennsylvania, M	David D. Queen
Pennsylvania, W	J. Alan Johnson
Puerto Rico	Daniel F. Lopez-Romo
Rhode Island	Lincoln C. Almond
South Carolina	Benry Dargan McMaster
South Dakota	Philip N. Hogen
Tennessee, E	John W. Gill, Jr.
Tennessee, M.	Joe B. Brown
Tennessee, W	W. Bickman Ewing, Jr.
Texas, N	James A. Rolfe
Texas, S	Daniel K. Hedges
Texas, E	Robert J. Wortham
Texas, W	Edward C. Prado
Utah	Brent D. Ward
Vermont	George W. F. Cook
Virgin Islands	James W. Diehm
Virginia, E	Elsie L. Munsell
Virginia, W	John P. Alderman
Washington, E	John E. Lamp
Washington, W	Gene S. Anderson
West Virginia, N	William A. Kolibash
West Virginia, S	David A. Paber
Wisconsin, E	Joseph P. Stadtmueller
Wisconsin, W	John R. Byrnes
Wyoming	Richard A. Stacy
North Mariana Islands	David T. Wood